# 立法會 Legislative Council

LC Paper No. CB(2)1393/06-07 (These minutes have been seen by the Administration)

Ref: CB2/PL/AJLS

## Panel on Administration of Justice and Legal Services

# Minutes of meeting held on Monday, 26 February 2007, at 4:30 pm in Conference Room A of the Legislative Council Building

**Members** : Hon Margaret NG (Chairman)

**present** Hon MA Lik, GBS, JP (Deputy Chairman)

Hon Martin LEE Chu-ming, SC, JP

Hon James TO Kun-sun

Hon Miriam LAU Kin-yee, GBS, JP

Hon Emily LAU Wai-hing, JP Hon Audrey EU Yuet-mee, SC, JP

**Members** : Hon Jasper TSANG Yok-sing, GBS, JP

absent Hon LI Kwok-ying, MH, JP

**Public Officers** : Item IV attending

The Administration

Administration Wing, Chief Secretary for Administration's

Office

Miss Elizabeth TSE

Director of Administration

Mr Benjamin CHEUNG Director of Legal Aid

Miss Shirley YUEN

Deputy Director of Administration

Mr T. E. KWONG

Assistant Director of Legal Aid (Litigation)

Ms Alice CHUNG Assistant Director of Legal Aid (Application and Processing)

Mrs Alice CHEUNG Assistant Director of Administration

Item V

**The Administration** 

**Department of Justice** 

Mr Stephen WONG Deputy Solicitor General

Ms Kitty FUNG Senior Government Counsel

Attendance by : invitation

Item IV

Hong Kong Bar Association

Mr Philip DYKES, SC

Law Society of Hong Kong

Mr Stephen HUNG Wan-shun Council member and Chairman of the Criminal Law & Procedure Committee

Mr Michael VIDLER
Member of the Criminal Law & Procedure Committee

Item V

Law Society of Hong Kong

Professional Indemnity Scheme Review Working Party

Mr Peter LO

President, Chairman of the Working Party

Mr Peter GRIFFITHS

Member of the Working Party and Chairman of Hong Kong Solicitors Indemnity Fund Ltd.

Mr Nick HUNSWORTH Member of the Working Party

Mr Sundaramoothy KRISHNAN Member of the Working Party

Mr Benny YEUNG

Member of the Working Party

Ms Vivien LEE

Assistant Director, Professional Indemnity Scheme

**Clerk in** : Mrs Percy MA

attendance Chief Council Secretary (2)3

**Staff in** : Mr Arthur CHEUNG

**attendance** Senior Assistant Legal Adviser 2

Mrs Eleanor CHOW

Senior Council Secretary (2)4

#### Action

#### I. Confirmation of minutes of meeting

(LC Paper No. CB(2)1125/06-07 - Minutes of meeting on 22 January 2007)

The minutes of the meeting held on 22 January 2007 were confirmed.

#### II. Information paper issued since last meeting

(LC Paper Nos. CB(2)1087/06-07(01) and (02) - Correspondence between the Panel and the Administration on "Review of the jurisdiction of the Office of the Ombudsman"

LC Paper Nos. CB(2)1100/06-07(01) and (02) - Comments received from the Law Society's Civil Litigation Committee and Family Law Committee and a solicitor's firm on "Enforcement of court judgments in civil cases")

- 2. <u>Members</u> noted that the above papers had been issued to the Panel.
- 3. <u>The Chairman</u> said that the comments received from members of the Law Society on "Enforcement of court judgments in civil cases" had been forwarded to the Administration for consideration. The Panel would decide on the timing to discuss the issue upon receipt of the Administration's response.

## III. Items for discussion at the next meeting

(LC Paper No. CB(2)1132/06-07(01) - List of outstanding items for discussion

LC Paper No. CB(2)1132/06-07(02) - List of items tentatively scheduled for discussion at Panel meetings in 2006-2007 session

LC Paper No. CB(2)1132/06-07(03) - List of follow-up actions

LC Paper No. CB(2)975/06-07(01) - Referral from the Bills Committee on Hazardous Chemicals Control Bill concerning consistency in the implementation of international conventions in local legislation

LC Paper No. CB(2)1145/06-07(01) - Letter dated 22 February 2007 from the Department of Justice on "Non-civil service contract staff"

LC Paper No. CB(2)1145/06-07(02) - Letter dated 22 February 2007 from the Judiciary Administration on "Non-civil service contract staff in the Judiciary")

## Agenda for the meeting on 26 March 2007

4. <u>Members</u> agreed to discuss the following items at the meeting on 26 March 2007 -

# (a) <u>Provision of legal aid services</u>

The Panel had agreed at a previous meeting to discuss the approach of the five-yearly review of the criteria for assessing financial eligibility limits of legal aid applicants, and to receive views on the provision of legal aid services;

(b) <u>Implementation of international conventions in local legislation</u>

Members noted that the Bills Committee on Hazardous Chemicals Control Bill had requested the Panel to follow up on the issue concerning consistency in the implementation of international conventions in local legislation. Ms Audrey EU recalled that the legal adviser to the Bills Committee had expressed concern on a number of occasions about the different approaches adopted by various bureaux in implementing international conventions. She suggested and members agreed that the Legal Service Division should prepare a paper to facilitate the Panel's discussion at the next meeting.

## Legal aid for coroner's court

5. <u>Ms Audrey EU</u> and <u>Mr Martin LEE</u> suggested that the provision of legal aid for family members of the deceased in a coroner's inquest should be discussed at the next meeting. They referred to the legal aid application pertaining to the death inquest of

LSD

constable TSUI Po-ko who was involved in the Tsim Sha Tsui shoot-out in March 2006 and expressed concern whether the TSUI family would receive a fair hearing without legal representation. They pointed out that while Mr TSUI's mother's application for legal aid had been rejected, other family members of Mr TSUI, such as his child, should be eligible for legal aid.

- 6. The Chairman invited the Director of Legal Aid (DLA) who was present at the meeting for discussion of agenda item IV to respond. DLA informed members that the application was not approved because the mother of Mr TSUI did not pass the means test. The Legal Aid Department (LAD) had subsequently explained to the TSUI family the options available, including the option for other family members, such as Mr TSUI's child, to apply for legal aid. Given that the TSUI family had not taken any follow-up action, the LAD was not in a position to consider the matter further.
- 7. To facilitate the Panel to consider whether any follow-up discussion was required, the Chairman requested and DLA undertook to provide a paper to explain, inter alia, the reasons for refusal of legal aid in the case of TSUI Po-ko, as well as the criteria for granting legal aid for proceedings before the Coroner's Court.

(*Post-meeting note :* The paper provided by the Administration was issued to members vide LC Paper No. CB(2)1362/06-07(01) on 20 March 2007)

## IV. Criminal legal aid fees system

(LC Paper No. CB(2)1127/06-07(01) - Background brief prepared by the LegCo Secretariat on "Criminal legal aid fees system"

LC Paper No. CB(2)1127/06-07(02) - Paper provided by the Administration on "Review of criminal legal fees system"

LC Paper No. CB(2)1127/06-07(03) - Paper provided by the Law Society on "Review of criminal legal aid fees"

LC Paper No. CB(2)1127/06-07(04) - Draft minutes provided by the Law Society of a meeting held between the Administration and the legal professional bodies on 21 December 2006

LC Paper No. CB(2)1127/06-07(05) - Letter dated 16 February 2007 from the Law Society to the Administration)

#### Briefing by the Administration

8. <u>Director of Administration (D of Adm)</u> said that details of the progress of the review of the criminal legal aid fee system were set out in the Administration's paper. The Administration had reached broad consensus with the two legal professional bodies on the proposed structure for criminal legal aid fees. The proposed structure would bring about substantial improvements, i.e. proper recognition for preparation or

pre-trial work, rationalisation of fee items, and enhanced transparency for the fee setting and re-determination basis. Making reference to Annex B to the Administration's paper, <u>D of Adm</u> took members through the types of payment items under the existing and proposed fee structure. She said that the estimated increase in criminal legal aid expenditure arising from the proposed change in the fee structure based on past experience was about 30%, or roughly \$30 million per annum, on the basis of current rates. There were still some outstanding issues regarding the payment structure in respect of instructing solicitors and solicitor advocates that needed to be worked out with the Law Society.

## Views of deputations

9. Mr Stephen HUNG Wan-shun, Chairman of the Criminal Law and Procedure Committee of the Law Society of Hong Kong, said that the Law Society had held six meetings with the Administration since March 2006 and had accepted a number of proposals to improve the structure of the criminal legal aid fee system. He expressed particular concern on the following issues which remained outstanding pending further discussion with the Administration -

## (a) Rates for various payment items

The Law Society hoped that the proposed fee structure would bring about reasonable remuneration for legal aid lawyers. Although the Administration held the view that it had no difficulties in engaging suitable private legal practitioners as legal aid lawyers at the current rates, the question remained whether better service could be provided to defendants. Some law firms had refused to take up criminal legal aid cases because of the meagre amount paid by the LAD under the current system, while some law firms had taken up the work on a charity basis. In its submission to the Panel, the Law Society had attached in the Appendix two cases to illustrate the inadequate remuneration payable to solicitors for preparatory work. In the first case, the total costs amounted to \$164,920 for 84 hours of work. However, the amount of fees paid by the LAD was merely \$15,846. Discounting the fees for trainee solicitors who assisted in the case, the solicitor who had over 10 years of legal experience was paid at \$720.27 per hour only. In the second case, the lawyer was paid \$18,110.60 for 153 hours of work, which was equivalent to a legal service charge of \$118.30 per hour only. Mr HUNG pointed out that even with an overall increase of 30% in criminal legal aid fees, the remuneration for assigned lawyers was still unreasonable. The Law Society hoped that the Administration would consider increasing the overall criminal legal aid expenditure after the review, and would undertake to discuss with the Law Society the fee rates for the various payment items under the criminal legal aid fee system. He stressed that the proposed fee system should recognise the role and responsibilities of assigned lawyers and provide reasonable remuneration to reflect the work done; and

#### (b) Taxation

The Law Society could not accept that the DLA was the final arbitrator on fee disputes, having regard to the principle of natural justice. It insisted that taxation was the best way to resolve disputes on criminal legal aid fees. Alternatively, the jurisdiction of the "Legal Aid Review Committee" (a committee established under section 26A(1) of the Legal Aid Ordinance (Cap. 91)) could be expanded or a statutory body should be set up to adjudicate on fee disputes.

- 10. Mr Michael VIDLER, Member of the Criminal Law and Procedure Committee of the Law Society, said that it was important that the review of the criminal legal aid system would take into account the needs of the future. The present judicial and criminal justice system were established in the 1970's. The quality of police investigations and the complexity of crimes had changed significantly since then. It was necessary for accused persons to be properly represented at different stages, i.e. during the investigation stage, after being charged and before the trial. Mr VIDLER added that accused persons should also be legally represented at police stations.
- 11. Mr Philip DYKES of the Hong Kong Bar Association said that the Bar Association was in general content with the proposed criminal legal aid fee structure. The concerns of the Bar Association regarding brief fee and refresher fee had been addressed. As a matter of legal policy, the Bar Association agreed with the Law Society on the following -
  - (a) taxation was a fair way to resolve disputes on criminal legal aid fees. The civil legal aid system also adopted such a system;
  - (b) there should be no distinction in the rates between Court of First Instance (CFI) and District Court (DC) cases. It was a well-known fact that some DC cases could be extremely complex, and some CFI cases could be factually and legally simple; and
  - (c) the Administration should be mindful that the proposed fee system would have a knock-on effect on the way fees were calculated by the Department of Justice and the Duty Lawyer Scheme.
- 12. In response to the two legal professional bodies, <u>D of Adm</u> made the following clarifications -
  - (a) the increase of 30% in legal aid expenditure arising from the proposed system, or roughly \$30 million per annum, was only a rough estimate based on the annual expenditure of criminal legal aid fee which was \$100 million. It was not a cap; the actual extent of increase could be more and would vary from case to case, largely depending on the actual amount of time spent on preparation. Take the example of the present

brief fee payable to a solicitor at a flat rate of \$6,790 for pre-trial preparation of a CFI case, under the proposed system the solicitor would be paid a "reading fee" to be payable on an hourly basis (i.e. 90 pages should amount to one hour's reading) and a "preparation fee" to cover pre-trial preparation payable on a four-hour basis. The fees payable to a solicitor for a case involving 60 hours of preparatory work could be as much as \$25,000 under the proposed fee structure, which was way above the overall increase of 30%; and

(b) under the current system, the fee payable to an assigned lawyer was assessed after the work was done and the case concluded. Under the proposed system, the classification of a particular case and hence their rates, as well as the required preparation time would be assessed beforehand and marked on the brief when making the assignment. Lawyers would also be allowed to view the bundle before accepting assignments to facilitate their consideration. In addition, assigned lawyers could seek the LAD's re-determination of fees both during and at the end of the case. Under the circumstances, the Administration did not see the need for a taxation system for resolving disputes on criminal legal aid fees.

### Discussion with members

- 13. Mr Martin LEE said that an increase of 30% in criminal legal aid expenditure was not a significant improvement to the existing fee system, given that many lawyers at present took up criminal legal aid work on a charitable or pro bono basis. He asked whether it was the mindset of the Administration that lawyers undertaking criminal legal aid work should receive less than the market rates. Mr LEE concurred with the Law Society that there was a conflict of interest for the DLA to adjudicate on fee disputes between assigned lawyers and the LAD.
- 14. <u>D of Adm</u> reiterated that the overall increase of 30% was not meant to be the cap for any individual payment items under the proposed fee structure. The market rates for lawyers varied, depending on their experience and seniority. At present, the LAD had not encountered difficulties in engaging suitable private legal practitioners to take up criminal legal aid cases on the basis of the current rates. Despite this, the Administration recognised the need to improve the current system to provide reasonable remuneration to assigned lawyers and hence the proposed fee structure.
- 15. Mr Stephen HUNG said that at present, a solicitor with over 10 years of experience would charge at \$3,000 to \$4,000 per hour. The Law Society was willing to make concessions and did not ask for lawyers in undertaking criminal legal aid work to be paid at the market rates. However, a mere 30% increase in, for example, the exiting brief fee would not be acceptable. In his view, the Administration had to increase the expenditure for criminal legal aid substantially. He added that higher fees would encourage more experienced lawyers to take up legal aid cases and this would in turn benefit the defendants.

- 16. Ms Audrey EU said that the fee system for criminal legal aid should be comparable to that for civil legal aid, and she raised two points in this regard. First, she asked why the fee rates for the various payment items under the proposed structure of the criminal legal aid fee system had yet to be finalised, as the stakeholders had already reached broad consensus on the proposed structure. Secondly, she did not understand why the Administration had ruled out a taxation system for criminal legal aid fees, which was also adopted for civil legal aid fees. According to her experience, there were very few disputes on civil legal aid fees which needed to be resolved by taxation. She would expect the same for criminal legal aid fees.
- D of Adm explained that the Administration needed to reach an agreement with the stakeholders on the proposed fee structure for criminal legal aid before proceeding to discussing the rates for specific payment items under the new structure. Different rates would be set for brief fee, refresher fee, pre-trial fee, mention hearing fee, conference fee, etc. She assured the Panel that the Administration would work out the rates for payment items for discussion with the stakeholders. As regards taxation for criminal legal aid fees, <u>D of Adm</u> said that for the civil legal aid system, the LAD and assigned lawyer had no prior agreement on the fees; hence taxation at the end would be appropriate. On the other hand, under a marked brief system, fees were agreed beforehand. As such, taxation would not be necessary. In any case, the notable improvements of the proposed system over the present one should be allowed to be tested before concluding that they would not work and that a system of taxation was needed. She informed members that in the course of deliberating the subject, Mr Justice STOCK had expressed concern about the resource implications of a taxation system on the Judiciary.
- 18. In response to the Chairman, Mr Stephen HUNG said that the Law Society had no strong view as to whether a court or other statutory bodies should be the one to adjudicate on fee disputes of criminal legal aid, as long as the DLA was not the final arbitrator. The Law Society had once suggested the use of mediators to resolve fee disputes, which was considered to be a less costly alternative. Nevertheless, Mr DYKES had pointed out that allowing a private non-legal third party to have a say in legal aid expenditure did not seem appropriate. The Law Society had subsequently suggested that the jurisdiction of the "Legal Aid Review Committee" could be expanded to adjudicate fee disputes. The Chairman requested the Administration to seek the view of the Legal Aid Services Council, which advised the Government on legal aid policy, on the suggestion of the Law Society and give a response to the Panel at the next meeting.
- 19. <u>Ms Miriam LAU</u> said that the proposed fee structure was more reasonable than the current one. She did not consider that lawyers handling criminal legal aid cases should be paid at the market rates, as this was not the case for those handling civil legal aid cases. <u>Ms LAU</u> pointed out that civil legal aid fees were either paid at fixed or variable rates. In the latter case, the assigned lawyer would bill the LAD and the two parties would negotiate and agree on the amount payable. As a result, not many

Admin

civil legal aid fee disputes were settled by taxation. <u>Ms LAU</u> asked whether the Administration would propose a set of standard rates for various payment items for the proposed fee system, or different rates having regard to the seniority of the lawyers as in the case of civil legal aid. She was of the view that the seniority of the lawyers should be considered in setting the rates.

- 20. <u>D of Adm</u> said that the fee rates for various payment items for criminal legal aid would take into account the level of court involved and the classification of the cases such as the complexity and the length of the cases. The fee system would follow the one adopted by the Department of Justice in engaging lawyers in private practice to prosecute in criminal cases on behalf of the Government. As regards whether seniority would be one of the factors in determining the rates, <u>D of Adm</u> said that stakeholders had been consulted and they generally agreed that this factor should not be introduced into the fee system to keep it simple. <u>DLA</u> supplemented that the LAD would take into account the background and experience of a lawyer when assigning a criminal legal aid case.
- 21. <u>Mr James TO</u> said that experienced lawyers would not be attracted to handle criminal legal aid cases because of the existing fee system. His observation was that with less experienced lawyers taking up criminal legal aid cases, the conviction rate of the prosecution would be much higher. Hence, to provide reasonable remuneration for legal aid lawyers would be conducive to the principles of access to justice and equality of arms.
- 22. <u>D of Adm</u> responded that the DOJ and LAD used similar fee rates and that legal aid applicants were allowed to nominate their legal representatives under the current system. In working out an improved criminal legal aid fee system, the Administration had to balance the need to provide reasonable and effective remuneration to assigned lawyers, and the duty to be prudent in public money spending. In response to the Chairman, <u>D of Adm</u> said that the existing fee system for criminal legal aid was introduced in 1992 and the current rates came into effect in 2003.
- 23. Referring to paragraphs 20 and 22 of the submission of the Law Society, Mr James TO said that suspects should be able to communicate and to consult privately with his lawyer at any stage of investigation. Mr TO further said that the Administration should review whether legal aid should be provided to suspects, in particular those involved in serious crimes, so that they could seek legal advice and representation at the stage of arrest and interrogation.
- 24. In response to the Chairman, <u>D of Adm</u> responded that the issue of legal representation raised by Mr TO and Mr VIDLEY had not been raised for discussion during the review of the criminal legal aid fee system. The issue should be followed up in separate forum. The Administration aimed to complete its consultation with stakeholders on the outstanding issues, including the rates under the proposed system, before summer. The Administration would report progress to the Panel in due course.

Clerk

25. To facilitate the Panel to consider whether another meeting should be held before the end of the session, the Chairman said that the Clerk would write to the Administration enquiring about progress of the review in May/June 2007.

# V. Professional Indemnity Scheme of the Law Society

(LC Paper No. CB(2)1132/06-07(04) - Background brief prepared by the LegCo Secretariat on "Professional Indemnity Scheme of the Law Society"

LC Paper No. CB(2)1132/06-07(05) - Paper provided by the Law Society of Hong Kong on "Report on the progress of the Review of the Professional Indemnity Scheme"

LC Paper No. CB(2)1145/06-07(03) - Letter dated 22 February 2007 from the Administration on "Professional Indemnity Scheme of the Law Society of Hong Kong")

- 26. Members noted that the Professional Indemnity Scheme (PIS) was a mandatory scheme which provided indemnity against negligence claims made by the public against members of the Law Society. In accordance with the requirements of the Legal Practitioners Ordinance (Cap. 159), a Solicitors Indemnity Fund (SIF) was established and maintained by the Council of the Law Society (the Council) for administering the indemnity scheme. Under the indemnity scheme, the SIF had primary liability but had always reinsured its obligations with a number of re-insurers. Before the expiry of the last reinsurance contract in September 2005, the Law Society had commissioned Willis China (Hong Kong) Limited to conduct an independent review of the insurance arrangements under its PIS. In November 2003, the Willis Report had proposed two major schemes alternative to the existing PIS, i.e. a Master Policy Scheme (MPS) and a Qualifying Insurers Scheme (QIS). Although the Willis Report and the Council recommended the adoption of the MPS, members of the Law Society had voted in favour of the QIS at the Extraordinary General Meeting (EGM) in November 2004. After considering the implications of the QIS, members of the Law Society had voted against the implementation of the OIS by a majority at the EGM on 26 April 2006.
- 27. At the invitation of the Chairman, Mr Peter LO, President of the PIS Review Working Party of the Law Society, reported progress on the work done by the Working Party as set out in the paper. Mr LO informed the Panel that pending the review by the Working Party to improve on the structure and operation of the existing PIS, indemnity had continued to be provided by the existing scheme. The reinsurance contract was renewed with effect from 1 October 2006 for a period of three years, with an option to terminate after two years. The contract entered into with the reinsurers was considered a reasonable deal. The SIF took the liability on the first \$100 million of claims and the reinsurers took the entirety of whatever was in excess of \$100 million without limit.

28. <u>Mr LO</u> highlighted the three main concerns raised by members of the Working Party as follows -

### (a) Deductibles

Deductibles referred to the amount an insured was expected to contribute to the SIF. The administration of the SIF was required to have regard to the interest of members of the Law Society as a whole. While the SIF was not required to make a profit, it should be run on prudent commercial principles. In the interest of the SIF, the deductible was collectable on a "user pays" principle. The deductible payable was calculated on the basis of the number of solicitors in a firm multiplied by the sum of \$20,000 or \$15,000, depending on whether the solicitor was a partner, or a consultant/assistant solicitor of the firm. As the levels of deductibles had remained unchanged for many years, the Working Party had reviewed the matter. There were different views on whether and how the levels of deductibles should be adjusted;

## (b) <u>Contributions</u>

The Working Party had considered whether to adopt risk banding in determining the level of contribution by a firm, e.g. whether certain kinds of work and a firm with a bad claim record should attract a higher contribution. The Working Party had noted that the proportion of claims by work types changed from time to time. It was necessary to conduct a banding exercise and work out an adjustment mechanism if risk banding was to be adopted. The issue was controversial and complicated. The Working Party would be making recommendations to the Council in due course; and

#### (c) MPS

Following the collapse of the HIH Group, the reinsurer of the SIF, in March 2001, members of the Law Society held the view that unlimited mutual liability for the wrongdoing of individual practitioners was fundamentally unacceptable, and that the existing system, which put solicitors at risk in the event of insurer insolvency, would have to be changed. Members of the Law Society had found that while the QIS could remove the element of mutuality, other problems had surfaced such as the uncertainty of the amount of premium payable. The QIS had been decisively rejected by the Law Society. To address the question of mutuality, the Working Party was reconsidering the MPS, under which part of the liability would be undertaken by the existing fund and the remainder by a consortium of insurers. The Working Party would be making recommendations to the Council in due course.

- 29. <u>Deputy Solicitor General</u> said that the Administration would defer its observations until the outstanding issues were resolved and had no comment at this stage on the progress report made by the Law Society.
- 30. <u>The Chairman</u> sought clarification as to whether the Working Party would be revisiting the MPS or making improvement on the current PIS. She recalled that the Willis Report had suggested an overhaul of the management of the present PIS which was regulated by statute, and hence cumbersome.
- 31. Mr Peter LO said that the Law Society had spent \$4 million on the Willis Report. In the course of deliberating the QIS, merits of the existing system had come to light, e.g. members of the Law Society were protected even after retirement. He confirmed that modifications would be made to the existing PIS having regard to the MPS. He explained that the MPS was not much different from the PIS, except that it transferred part of the liability to insurers rather than to members of the Law Society generally. In response to Mr Martin LEE, Mr LO said that mutuality had been a controversial issue among members of the Law Society. The MPS would address substantially the problem of mutuality.
- 32. <u>Ms Emily LAU</u> said that many law firms had expressed grave concern about the financial hardship in meeting the shortfall in the PIS as a result of the collapse of the HIH Group. With the continued operation of the PIS since then, it would appear that the concern had subsided.
- 33. Mr Peter LO explained that as far as members of the Law Society were concerned, the pain of making extra contributions as a result of the HIH incident had been real. In his view, the financial risk of its members to cover the shortfall in the SIF in the event of the collapse of the reinsurer had not gone to sleep, although it did not have the same degree of urgency.
- 34. <u>The Chairman</u> enquired about the timeframe of the Working Party's work. She pointed out that given that any amendment to the PIS would involve legislative amendments, it was preferable for the Law Society to finalise the new scheme a year before the expiry of the existing insurance contract.
- 35. Mr Peter LO responded that the issues of deductibles and banding were controversial. The crux of the matter was how to ensure fairness in collecting contributions from members of the Law Society. The Working Party was reaching the final stage of its work. It would take a few months to come up with a conceptual scheme for the consideration of the Council.
- 36. The Chairman thanked the Law Society for reporting the work progress of the Working Party to the Panel. She said that the position of the Panel was to reflect the concerns of legal practitioners and safeguard the interest of the public. The Panel would write to the Law Society at the beginning of the next LegCo session to enquire about progress of the matter.

Clerk

37. There being no other business, the meeting ended at 6:32 pm.

Council Business Division 2 <u>Legislative Council Secretariat</u> 23 March 2007